RFP 2-02 – INMATE HEALTHCARE SERVICES

QUESTIONS / ANSWERS


1. Do the facilities have video conferencing capability?

For outside medical visits no, we have video visitation for inmates and we do link to videoconferences via satellite and computer for education purposes. 

2. Will you provide information pertaining to the annual cost of health services (i.e. salary, on-site clinics, dialysis, pharmacy)?

NA/ the annual cost was provided.

3. Will you provide a list of vendors bidding this project/attending the bid conference?

CMS, PHS, Wexford and MHM attended the conference

4. Re: RFP pages 19&20 Item B Level of Service (Paragraph 7); requiring the contractor to credit HCSO hour for hour any staff/post position hours not provided.  Will you provide the amount of dollars credited to HCSO and the number of hours not provided for the most recent 12-month period?

        
Provided in PHS questions, on line.

5. Re: RFP page 23 Item C Care and Treatment Requirements (Paragraph 12, e, f, &g).  Will you provide the number and type of penalties, as well as the corresponding dollar amount that have been incurred by the current provider for the most recent 12 month period?

There has been no penalty for H &Ps in past 12 months. Others are new, in gap contract no history to date.

6. Do corrections officers perform suicide watches?
Yes 

7. Part C, Technical Specifications. Item 5 of the RFP states that the population projections for 2002 are 3,350.  The population has increased significantly recently and is currently 3,700.  Do you anticipate the ADP going back down to the level of 3,350?  If not, please explain the discrepancy. 

The count for May was 3,529 the range for 2002 is up to 3450.  Yes we do expect the population numbers to go back down. 

8. Part C Technical Specifications, Item 8,A,5,a of the RFP requests a report of third party reimbursement, pursuit and recovery.  Please clarify what is required in this report. 

This report was added to the new contract and due by the 20th of the month see attachment B of the contract addendum dated April 26,2002. 

9. Part C Technical Specifications, Item 8,B,2 of the RFP requires offsite Case Management Services.  Please define what is meant by offsite Case Management Services.

This means the on site physician makes hospital rounds.

10. Part C Technical Specifications. Item 8,B,14 of the RFP states that the HSCO may prohibit entry or remove a contract employee who does not perform duties in a professional manner. Will HCSO provide written notification of the reason the contract employee is denied entry? 

No
11. Part C Technical Specifications. Item 8,C,2 of the RFP requires the contractor to provide sick call services to inmates on the day they request such services. This requirement exceeds NCCHC standards and is greater than the current requirements. Will HCSO be willing to change the requirements to meet NCCHC standards? 

Sick call triage needs to occur on the day of request, referral can occur at a later time.
12. Part C Technical Specifications. Item 8,C,7 of the RFP requires the contractor to credit HCSO for hours not provided by any medical staff POST. Please clarify the definition of POST. Are all positions within the staffing matrix considered a POST? 

1.
Posts are on the duty roster. 

2.
Yes

13. Part C Technical Specifications. Item 8,C,10 of the RFP requires delivery of medications within 8 hours of physician orders being written. This requirement exceeds NCCHC standards.  Will the HCSO consider modifying this requirement to meet NCCHC standards, with medication available within 8 hours, if necessary, or otherwise within 24 hours?

No

14. Part C Technical Specifications. Item 8,C,14 of the RFP requires medical staff to respond to acute medical needs of HCSO staff. Please define the term acute and what services are to be provided to HCSO staff.
Emergency services and first aid.
15. Part C Technical Specifications. Item 8,C,20 of the RFP requires the contractor to be responsible for PPD testing and blood borne pathogen testing for HCSO deputies. Please identify how many tests are performed annually, what system for paperwork/filing, etc. needs to be provided, and how the program is to be administered. Does the required staffing model include any additional staffing to service this requirement? If so, please identify position & FTE’s.
These statistic are not available from CMS.
16. Part C Technical Specifications. Item 12,f of the RFP discussed ten performance audits with non-compliance rate of 20% on any indicator resulting in a penalty.  Please clarify that the non-compliance rate will be based on the average of all indicators used within a specific audit criteria, i.e., the average of eight indicators regarding history and physicals will be used rather than each of eight individual indicators.

It is not, any indicator resulting in compliance rates below 80% will result in failure of that audit and a penalty.

17. Number of inmates on mental health caseload: 

Provided at bidder conference

18. What is the average monthly cost for inmates on psychotropic medications?

NA

19. The RFP clearly reflects mental health positions and facilities of responsibility.  What positions, if any, are not included in the RFP, and at whose cost?  Will these positions continue to be provided in the same manner pursuant to the new Inmate Healthcare Contract?  

All positions are in RFP, that disposition of each position is up to the vender.

20. Please provide a brief description of special mental health housing units, including number of beds.

   
110 bed, 2 /16man lock down pods, one population pod and female lock down


16 beds.

21. Please describe the management structure of the mental health program.

Psychiatrist over sees program. She reports to Medical Director and administrator.   

22. Formulary: are there any restrictions or protocols for use of high cost medications (i.e. Zyprexa, Risperdal, Prozac, etc.).

  
No, however they are not the first line of treatment on new cases.

23. Intake / screening process: how are inmates screened for suicide and mental health needs at intake.

Screened by screening nurses. 

24. Once screened and found to be in need of MH, how are inmates processed and referred to Mental Health to initiate treatment?

Depends on whether the need is immediate or can be done through a referral.  

25. How do officers and other staff refer inmates to mental health? 

Call the clinic, complete a behavior observation form.

26. Are there any diversion programs occurring at intake?  

Yes, we have two community case managers doing diversion.

27. Please provide any budget information can you share about mental health program costs? 

 
 NA

28. Are there specific policies and procedures for mental health (i.e. policies relating use of forced medications, restraint, and outside hospitalization services)?  If so, please describe them.

There are specific polices on each of the above as per accreditation standards. 

29. The Health Services Report reflects a category titled “Inmates Admitted to Psych.” Please explain. 

These are patients in psychiatric housing.

30. Mental health services are usually included in healthcare service contracts as the usual way of doing business - especially since it often represents a fraction of the total healthcare budget. Still, said services are arguably significant factors in the overall quality and cost of services being provided (medication costs, inmate behavior, suicide watches and attempts, assaults, and the like). However, mental health contract providers like MHM Services offer additional and focused opportunities to provide quality mental health services while controlling overall costs. Having said this, is HCSO amenable to having proposals submitted in two parts; medical (everything but mental health) and mental health? This would enable HCSO to better delineate costs and services associated with these distinctly separate programs, which may result in some unexpected cost savings.

  
Yes

31. Please provide the current annual contract value for inmate health services at Hillsborough County Sheriff Office (HCSO). 

$9,480,268.00

32. Please provide a copy of the current inmate health services contract, including any addendums.

Provided in bidders packet.

33. If applicable, please note any requirements/services under the RFP that are not included in the current health services agreement.

Copies provided at bidders conference.

34. What is the average length of stay for HCSO inmates?

      
23 Days  

35. Regarding the 512 bed expansion in calendar year 2003, will any of these beds be for INS detainees?  If so, how many?

     No, We do not hold INS any longer than we have to.

36. What is the current number of inmates receiving HIV medications? What is the number of HIV positive inmates?

The number of patients on medication is not available, average cost per month in 2001 provided by Westshore Pharmacy was around $1000.00

37. Current statistics include a 90-day dental examination.  Will this be a requirement for the new contract? Or will it change to be in compliance with the revised ACA standards, which do not include a 90-day dental examination?

It will not be required when the Revised standards are obtained. 

38. Will orientation hours for new nurses and or medical staff be counted as filling a post for that day? 

Only if they fill a post. 

39. At what location are dialysis services provided?

Dialysis is provided at the center the patient participates in.

(BMA, Gambro)
40. The RFP does not mention requirements for deputy training by the medical department, what are they currently?  Will these same requirements be expected of the new vendor?

The Nurse educator and other medical staff participate in Deputy training as requested there are no set requirements at his time.

41. RFP Page 7, Letter C.1.b and c:  Please define the “large jail” or “correctional setting” experience requirement, which is to include documentation from each site confirming service delivery. Does a “Large Jail” = over 1000 Average Daily Population (ADP) or over 1500 ADP?

Jails of like size and program.

42. Does the HCSO expect bidders to describe their experience with all “large jails” in Florida, any correctional settings in Florida or any correctional settings throughout the United States? 

Florida as well as throughout the United States. 

Also, per RFP Page 36 “ACCREDITATIONS” (and RFP page 7, Letter C.1.c) “List all facilities at which your program has been accredited by NCCHC.  Provide copies of the accreditation certificates.”  Across the country, this is a tremendous amount of documentation. Can this be redefined and limited to include only large jails in Florida or the Eastern US, etc.?  

43. Per RFP Pages 8-9, #7 Terms of Contract, Letter H., Proposer Personal:  What is the average length of time required for the Sheriff’s Office to clear an employee candidate?  How far back does the necessary background information search extend (i.e. high school, college, recent employment)?  If the HCSO requires that an employee be terminated, is there a 30-day grace period to refill this position before hourly paybacks are required?

1.
We do a temporary clearance within 24 hours. 

2.
Birth

3.
No, there are no paybacks on positions only on posts.

44. RFP Page 9, Letter C states "The provider must show proof of agreement to maintain jail insurance coverage for a period of 7 years after the last day of service.  Is the "proof of agreement" a letter from the provider agreeing to maintain the coverages listed in the section immediately preceding this language?  If not, please provide more detail as to what you are requesting.

Copy of policy.

45. RFP Page 9, Letter J:  What is the “specified time to cure” period? 

30 days

46. RFP Page 9, Letters J and K: PHS assumes from the RFP that the HCSO will deduct from the monthly payments any penalties deemed justified vs. expecting reimbursement.  Is this assumption correct?

Yes

47. RFP Page 10, Letters L and M: Is the vendor required to insure the performance of the HCSO employees or “indemnify?”  Please clarify.  Regarding monthly payments, can monthly payments be billed in advance and paid at the start of the month?

Indemnify and hold harmless.

48. RFP Page 10, Letter O states that the vendor is responsible for all Contaminated Medical Waste vs. other portions of this RFP which require the vendor to be responsible for the removal of all contaminated waste.  Please clarify the vendor’s responsibility: all contaminated biohazardous medical waste or all contaminated waste (i.e.; sanitary napkins, etc.)  throughout the facility?

Only biohazardous waste throughout the facilities.

49. RFP Page10, Letter R:  When will the next NCCHC survey for re-accreditation occur?

2003

50. RFP Page 11, #1:  PHS assumes that when the 100 bed infirmary opens, the 44 bed men’s facility will close at the Orient Road Facility.  Is this assumption correct?  Also, if applicable, where will the women from this facility then be housed?

The new infirmary has two 50 bed units, one will be male the other female. Both the MSJ infirmary and ORJ infirmary will close when the new infirmary opens.

51. RFP Page 12, #4:  Please provide a current list of medical equipment, indicating the condition and age of each item.

Provided at bidders conference.

52. RFP Page 12, #5:  If the current agreement with Tampa General Hospital is between the Sheriff’s Office and Tampa General, is there any guarantee that it will be extended to the new vendor?  Please provide a copy of the current agreement with Tampa General.

The current agreement was negotiated by the Sheriff’s office, however the contract is with CMS. There are no guarantees that it will be extended. 

It is understood that Tampa General offers a reduced rate for inpatient services, do they also provide a discount for outpatient services, if so, what is that rate?

53. RFP Page 12, #5:  Can HIV medications/viral loads be counted as part of the aggregate cap? 

     
No

54. RFP Page12, #5:  Regarding Federal and INS inmates, please verify that pharmacy costs (on and off-site) for these inmates is considered a pass through back to those agencies.

Non-formulary costs on site and all off site are considered a pass through.

55. RFP Page12, #5:  Regarding “...set population caps,” please clarify whether this refers to “Population Projections” or “Population Range” data provided and also the intent of this sentence in regards to reimbursement. 

This information pertains to the range.  As to reimbursement, you can set perdiems above and below the range.

56. RFP Page 13 (first sentence): If the HCSO reserves the right to renegotiate the catastrophic cap after the initial 2nd and 3rd years due to a “poor cap negotiation,” will this same right be extended to the vendor?

Yes, only if indicated

57. RFP Page 15, #7:  Is the contractor being asked to provide medical services to the entire HCSO or just the Department of Corrections in a disaster?  If monies are recovered from FEMA in such an event, will the contractor be reimbursed for additional costs incurred?

1.
Only the Corrections Department


2.
No

58. RFP Page 15, Letter B.1:  What is the current cost of the salaries and benefits of the one RN who is a part of the Hillsborough County Civil Service System?  Is the contractor expected to pay the benefit costs associated with retirement, should this RN retire during the course of the contract?  Is this position included in the Attachment 1, “Proposed Minimum Staffing” plan?

59. RFP Page 15, Letter B.3.e. states as a requirement “sick call triage and follow up on a daily basis.”  Please clarify.  Does this mean Monday - Friday or Saturday - Sunday as well?

This includes Saturday and Sunday. 

 60.
RFP Page 16, #6 and #7: Are the clerical and support staff exempt from staffing by post penalties?  Are position by post paybacks hourly, daily or monthly?  Please clarify.  Are staffing penalty paybacks at straight salary, or salary plus benefits? 

1. There are no exemptions from staffing post penalties.  


2.
Hourly

3.
Average salary of LPN, RN ECT.

61. What is meant by “immediate” credit to the HCSO?  Do credits apply to all positions?  Please provide a history of credits by position for the most recent 12 months available.

1.
At the end of the month staffing credits are deducted form the next months invoice.   

2.
YES

3.
Not available due to contract changes.

62. RFP Page 16, #9: How many hours of HSCO training are the contractor’s medical employees required to attend per year? Are vacant hours due to training expected to be filled by the contractor?  If so, will paybacks be incurred?  Are in-services provided by hour or days, and will they occur on- or off-site?

HCSO provides one hour mandatory security training for all new employees on site. Absence from post for training purposes is not a payback. 

63. RFP Page 16, #10:  What are the types and categories of medications in the current KOP program?

OTCs, antibiotics and some chronic condition medications.

64. RFP Page 16, #10:  Is the vendor allowed to use the inmates' own medications upon entry into the jail?

Yes, however we prefer only high cost medications.

65. RFP Page 16, #11:  Please provide a copy of the facility's crush, open or pour policy?

Current policy is provider policy and can be distributed.

66. RFP Page 16, Letter C.1:  It is understood that the HCSO will provide Routine and Urgent (immediate but not requiring an ambulance) transportation services at no cost to the contractor.  Is this assumption correct?  It is also understood that all necessary ambulance services will be arranged by the contractor and applied toward the annual aggregate cap.  Is this assumption correct?

     Yes

67. RFP Page16, Letter C.2 states “In addition to 24 hour a day emergency service coverage, the hours for routine nurse sick call at each site shall be at levels which allows for all inmates needing medical services to be seen on the same day that they request such services”   Please clarify.  Does this refer to walk-in services?

      No, This refers to triage

68. RFP Page16, #12:  Is ADAP reimbursement available for HIV+ inmates?  If so, please provide any reimbursement data available for the most recent 12 months.

Yes/ NA

69. RFP Page17, #4: Who is the current provider for lab, EKG, and on-site x-ray services? 

Lab Corp, No service used, EKG machine interprets, Dr. Mosquera 

70. RFP Page 17, #5.g: Do AA and NA come on-site for educational classes/services now?

      
Yes

71. RFP Page 18, #11:  What is the meant by “immediate” screenings? What is the window during screenings, etc.?  If the provider is expected to over staff the screening area during screenings – will credit for these additional hours be applied against any position by post shortfalls?

1.
ASAP

2.
There is no set time frame

3.
We notify medical when stings occur, they usually pull from another post when needed without penalty.

72. RFP Page 18, #11.a:  Admission or return to the jail from the ER/hospital is predicated upon written medical clearance from whom? The on-site medical staff or the hospital?

The hospital. 

73. RFP Page 19, #11.f:  Please clarify what/when Alcohol testing is required by Florida Statute 943.325 and 316.1933.

Blood alcohol testing is required when the Deputy requests due to a death or serious injury in a MVA. The specimen is given to the Deputy for processing; this is not a lab cost to the vendor.

74. RFP Page19, #12.e., f. and g:  If applicable, please provide the amount of penalties/credits incurred by the current vendor over the past 12 months.  Please clarify how penalties will be assessed.

     
Penalties will be assessed on open posts and performance audits.

75. RFP Page 19, #12.f:  How many indicators will be utilized for the Ten Performance Audits?  Will the audits be prescheduled with the vendor's health service administrator?

The indicators vary form 5 to 25 (Pharmacy Audit). We are presently using the venders CQI auditing tools. The audits occur monthly the administrator will have knowledge of these audits.

76. RFP Page 19, #12.g:  With regard to the quarterly NCCHC Standards Survey:  Who will conduct this?  At whose cost?  Is the $5,000.00 penalty applicable to ANY and ALL NCCHC indicators below 20% compliance or is it a penalty for a total compliance rate below 20% on all indicators?  In other words – could the fine for an NCCHC audit be more than $5,000.00?

The medical services manager does the audit, and no the fine will not be more than $5,000.

77. RFP Page 20, #17.  How far in advance must routine off-site transportation be coordinated? 

      24 hours to 72hours 

78. RFP Page 20, #19:  Who is responsible for payment of the body cavity searches conducted off-site?  If the medical provider is expected to pay for these services – will the costs be applied to the cap? How many body cavity searches are conducted at the HCSO per year, on the average?

1.
Vendor

2.
Yes

3.
0

79. RFP Page 20, #20:  Who determines which exposure incidents from inmates would require deputies to get exposure lab tests?  Assuming that medical staff does the testing for blood borne pathogens for exposure incidents from inmates, who will be responsible for the costs of the associated labs?  If the medical provider is responsible for the lab costs – will these costs be applied to the off-site cap?  With regard to the required PPD testing of Deputies, does this include Deputies working on-site in corrections or ALL Deputies of the HCSO?  Please provide an approximate annual number of PPD’s to be planted and read.

1.
Medical Services Manager

2.
The vender

      
3.
No


4. 
All deputies

5.
Numbers not available, participation is low 

80. RFP Page 21, #5:  What is the current cost to retrieve a record from the off-site storage area? 

(1) One Box 

$12.80

(2) Two Boxes
$16.10

(3) Three Boxes
$19.40

(4) Four Boxes
$22.70

(5) Five Boxes

$26.00

Prices above are for retrieval of the listed quantities. Current pricing reflects 1 time retrieval. 

81. RFP Page 21, Letter E: What is the cost to the vendor for the “outside” correctional health care consultant?  Who selects the outside consultant?
1.
Unknown

2.
Mutually agreed upon.

82. RFP Page 21, Letter F.1:  Is there a Designated Pharmaceutical vendor with whom the medical vendor is required to sub-contract?

No, however we would like the vender to closely consider Westshore Pharmacy.

83. RFP Page 21, F.2: Define what office equipment will be required.

Everything but the desks, chairs and file cabinets, HCSO does supply computers in all areas that are connected to our network. 

84. RFP Page 21, Letter F.6:  Regarding prosthetics, PHS assumes the contractor will only be responsible for providing medically necessary prosthetics, not to include glasses or dentures.  Is this assumption correct? 

     Glasses and dentures are only included when deemed necessary to 

accomplish  - ADL’s

85.
RFP Page 22, Letter F.11:  Will the contractor be required to repair and maintain ALL office and medical equipment, or just the office and medical equipment owned by the contractor?


All medical and office equipment. 

86. RFP Page 22, #9 Health Care Contract:  Please clarify what is meant by “separate needed subcontract.”

The contract between HCSO and the successful bidder.







